RESEARCH AND EVALUATION STUDIES

CY 2020 INVENTORY REPORT

> Policy Development and Planning Bureau Research and Evaluation Division March 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

LIST OF FIGURES III	
LIST OF TABLESIV	,
EXECUTIVE SUMMARYV	,
BACKGROUND 1	
RESEARCH AND EVALUATION STUDIES UNDERTAKEN BY DSWD	
Central Office-Initiated studies	
EXTERNAL RESEARCH AND EVALUATION STUDIES7	
RESEARCH DISSEMINATION 12	
ISSUES/CONCERNS AND RECOMMENDED ACTIONS	
NEXT STEPS FOR THE PDPB14	
ANNEX A. LIST OF RESEARCH AND EVALUATION STUDIES UNDERTAKEN BY THE CENTRAL OFFICEA-1	
ANNEX B. LIST OF RESEARCH AND EVALUATION STUDIES UNDERTAKEN BY THE FIELD OFFICESB-1	
ANNEX C. LIST OF EXTERNAL RESEARCH AND EVALUATION STUDIES FACILITATED BY THE DSWDC-1	

LIST OF FIGURES

Fig.1. Number of Completed R & E Studies undertaken by CO-OBS: 2016-20203
Fig. 2. Number of Studies undertaken by CO-OBS by Status: 2020
Fig. 3. Distribution of Studies undertaken by CO-OBS according to DSWD Organizational Outcomes: 2020
Fig. 4. Distribution of Studies undertaken by CO-OBS according to Sector: 20204
Fig. 5.Distribution of Studies undertaken by CO-OBS according to Research/Evaluation Type: 20204
Fig. 6. Distribution of Studies undertaken by CO-OBS according to Type of Approach: 20204
Fig. 7. Distribution of Studies undertaken by FOs according to DSWD Organizational Outcomes: 2020
Fig. 8. Distribution of Studies undertaken by FOs according to Sector: 2020 (n=9)5
Fig. 9. Distribution of Studies undertaken by FOs according to Research/Evaluation Type: 2020
Fig. 10. Distribution of Studies undertaken by FOs according to Type of Approach: 20206
Fig. 11. Number of researches facilitated by FOs: 2016-20207
Fig. 12. Number of external researches facilitated by CO and FOs: 20207
Fig. 13. Number of completed external researches facilitated by CO and FOs and year of approval: 2020
Fig. 14. Distribution of researches facilitated by CO and FOs according to the type of institution of proponent: 2020 (n=102)
Fig. 15. Distribution of researches facilitated by CO and FOs according to Sector: 2020 (n=102)
Fig. 16. Distribution of researches facilitated by CO and FOs according to DSWD Organizational Outcomes: 2020 (n=102)

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1. Areas of study covered in OO1	9
Table 2. Areas of study covered in OO2	. 10
Table 3. Areas of study covered in OO3	. 10
Table 4. Areas of study covered in OO5	. 11
Table 5. Areas of study covered in the Foundational Outcomes	. 11
Table 6. DSWD-initiated research studies presented during the 2020 Research Forum	. 12

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Policy Development and Planning Bureau (PDPB) continuously monitors the status of implementation of Memorandum Circular (MC) No. 9, Series of 2019 or the "Guidelines for the Conduct of Research and Evaluation in the DSWD" otherwise known as the DSWD Research and Evaluation Policy. As part of the monitoring, a database of the Department's research and evaluation studies (i.e. planned, on-going, and completed) is maintained by PDPB. A report on the studies undertaken by the DSWD-Offices, Bureaus, Services, and Units (OBSUs), including external researches, capturing all approved proposals and/or final reports should be submitted to PDPB on an annual basis in order to ensure that the database is maintained and updated.

At the same time, with the issuance of the MC No. 10, s.2019 or the "Protocol for the Conduct of Research Studies in DSWD Offices, Centers and Institutions, Amending AO No. 19, s. 2011 including Request of SWD Data/Information", otherwise known as the DSWD Research Protocol, the DSWD Central Office (CO) and Field Offices (FOs) should adhere to the aforementioned guidelines in providing assistance to researchers in conducting research and evaluation (R&E) studies in DSWD Offices, Centers, and Institutions.

Internal R&E studies undertaken by DSWD include studies initiated by the CO and FOs, whether conducted in-house, joint, or fully outsourced. On the other hand, external R&E studies facilitated refer to those proposed by external researchers and assisted by the CO and FOs. Presented below are the highlights of the inventory of R&E studies that were undertaken and facilitated by the Department in CY 2020:

R&E Studies undertaken by DSWD CO

- 1. The number completed R&E studies undertaken by the DSWD Central Office-Offices, Bureaus, Services (CO-OBS) sharply declined from 20 in 2019 to 6 in 2020.
- 2. Among all the CO-OBS, the PDPB and 4Ps-NPMO reported the most number of R&E studies undertaken in 2020 at 40% each.
- 3. Most of the R&E studies undertaken by CO-OBS in 2020 were concentrated in the first two (2) Organizational Outcomes (OOs) of the Department, namely OO 1: *Well-being of poor families improved,* and OO 2: *Rights of the vulnerable sectors promoted and protected.*
- 4. The most common sector explored by the R&E studies undertaken by CO-OBS in 2020 was family and community at 40% of the total.
- 5. Majority of R&E studies conducted by CO-OBS in 2020 were descriptive in nature.
- 6. Four (4) R&E studies undertaken by CO-OBs in 2020 were fully outsourced.

R&E Studies undertaken by DSWD FOs

- 1. A total of nine (9) R&E studies were undertaken by Field Offices (FOs) in 2020.
- 2. As in the case of R&E studies managed by the CO-OBS, FO-initiated studies in 2020 were along OO1, OO2, and organization-focused objectives of the Department.
- 3. Family and community, organizational development, as well as children and youth were the sectors explored by FO-initiated studies.
- 4. Descriptive research was the most common type of R&E study conducted by FOs in 2020 at 78% of the total.
- 5. Most of the R&E studies undertaken by FOs in 2020 were in-house and majority of them are still ongoing.

External R&E Studies facilitated by CO and FOs

- 1. Over the past five (5) years, the general trend of the number of external R&E studies facilitated by DSWD is decreasing at an average rate of 10%.
- 2. Overall, the CO received the most number of external research requests in 2020 pegged at 27.
- 3. A total of 13 external researches were completed in 2020, 31% of which were facilitated by FO CAR.
- 4. Around three in four (77%) external research proponents assisted by CO and FOs in 2020 were students from higher education institutions.
- 5. As in the case of DSWD-initiated R&E studies, the most common sector investigated by external researchers in 2020 was family and community.
- 6. Nearly half (48%) of external researches facilitated by CO and FOs in 2020 were related to OO2: *Rights of the poor and vulnerable sectors promoted and protected.*

Key Recommendations

- 1. Explore on alternative modes of data collection if primary data collection is necessary. Use of available secondary datasets may also be looked into to attain research objectives without the need to collect primary data.
- 2. Strengthen the dissemination of DSWD administrative and secondary data. PDPB should maximize its Content Management Team to develop an interactive database that is easily accessible in the website.
- 3. Strengthen mechanisms for monitoring external researchers through an electronic research ticketing system with the assistance of ICTMS
- 4. Continue advocating and popularizing the research-related policies of the Department (i.e., MC 9 and 10, s.2019) as mentioned in the Memorandum of Reiteration issued by the Undersecretary for Policy and Plans
- Review and harmonize the processes under the Research Protocol across the Central and Field Offices in consideration of pertinent laws (i.e., Data Privacy Act, Ease of Doing Business Law, Anti-Red Tape Act, etc.) and document its standard operating procedure towards ISO certification
- 6. Institutionalize research ethics in the Department through the establishment of a Research Ethics Committee, capacity building of its members, and operationalization of its Terms of Reference
- 7. Continue to implement the Online R&E Portal for both the CO and FOs to facilitate proper reporting and consolidation of undertaken and facilitated R&E studies
- 8. Strengthen the implementation and monitoring of the Client Satisfaction Measurement Survey to serve as the basis for evaluating the feedback of the researchers on the assistance provided
- Ensure the strict and continuous implementation of MC Nos. 9 (DSWD Research and Evaluation Policy) and 10 (Amendment to the Protocol for the Conduct of Research Studies in DSWD Offices, Centers and Institutions), series of 2019
- 10. Strengthen linkages and networking with research institutions, the academe and other stakeholders to promote awareness on the DSWD R&E Policy and amended DSWD Protocol on the conduct of research in the Department
- 11. Continuously monitor the approved DSWD Research and Evaluation Agenda 2019-2022 (AO no. 22 s. 2019)

BACKGROUND

The DSWD MC No. 09, s. 2019 or the "Guidelines for the conduct of research and evaluation in the DSWD", otherwise known as the *DSWD Research and Evaluation Policy*, was issued to:

- 1. Institutionalize the formulation and monitoring of the DSWD Research and Evaluation Agenda; and
- 2. Provide standards and criteria in the conduct of researches and evaluation studies in the Department.

The policy covers all DSWD Offices, Bureaus, Services, and Units (OBSUs) in the Central and Field Offices tasked to conduct research and evaluation studies on the DSWD policies, programs, and projects. This shall include the development, management, and implementation of any research and evaluation study initiated by the Department, regardless of execution (i.e., in-house, joint, or outsourced).

Additionally, the policy applies to external stakeholders who partner with the Department in the conduct of researches or evaluations related to or involving the DSWD, such as local and international research institutions, the academe, independent researchers, other national government agencies, local government units, and DSWD attached agencies.

With the growing interest on research studies in the Department, DSWD MC No. 10, s.2019 or the "Protocol for the Conduct of Research Studies in DSWD Offices, Centers and Institutions, Amending AO No. 19, s.2011 including Request of SWD Data/Information", otherwise known as the *DSWD Research Protocol*, was also issued to:

- 1. Provide the standard protocols in conducting research studies in the Department and providing SWD data/statistics;
- 2. Define the role of the Central Office and Field Offices including external researchers in the processing of research request; and
- 3. Reduce the processing time for approval of research studies conducted by external researchers on DSWD Offices, Centers and Institutions.

This policy covers the following individuals/groups:

- 1. All DSWD Offices, Bureaus, Services, and Units in the Central and Field Offices, including Centers and Institutions tasked to provide data and assist external researchers in the conduct of research and studies.
- 2. External researchers such as students, academe, other government agencies including members of other branches of government, local and international organizations or research institutions, and other independent researchers who intend to conduct research studies related to or involving the Department.
- 3. Above-mentioned researchers seeking to acquire primary data from the Department including clients/beneficiaries currently at its Centers/Institutions, and on-going DSWD programs, projects, and services wherein their main subject of research study involves DSWD as an organization.
- 4. Academe, media, and general public who are not researchers but requesting current and secondary SWD data and statistics from the Department including clients/beneficiaries currently or served and programs, projects and services of the Department.

5. DSWD personnel conducting researches in DSWD Offices, Centers and Institutions, for the purpose of pursuing higher academic education.

With the issuances of the two (2) memorandum circulars, the PDPB is responsible to maintain an inventory of research and evaluation studies undertaken and managed by the DSWD, including external researches approved and facilitated by DSWD through the Central Office-OBSUs and Field Offices. This report presents a summary of the inventory for CY 2020, provides highlights of research and evaluation studies undertaken and facilitated, as well as recommendations to further promote the culture of research and evidence-based policy formulation in the Department.

RESEARCH AND EVALUATION STUDIES UNDERTAKEN BY DSWD

CENTRAL OFFICE-INITIATED STUDIES

The number of completed research and evaluation (R&E) studies undertaken by the DSWD Central Office-Offices, Bureaus, Services (CO-OBS) sharply declined from 20 in 2019 to 6 in 2020. Only six (6) R&E studies were completed by CO-OBS in 2020 based on reports received. Aside from underreporting, the significant drop can be attributed to the limitations in the movement of personnel to conduct face-to-face



interviews due to the minimum health standards and protocols implemented by the Government to mitigate the spread of the Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19). Some CO-OBS who were able to complete their studies opted to remote means of gathering information (e.g., phone interviews, online surveys). While other CO-OBS suspended their research activities due to travel restrictions in place.

Among all the CO-OBS, the PDPB and 4Ps-NPMO reported the most number of R&E studies undertaken in 2020 at 40% each. Despite the operational challenges during the height of the pandemic, the Policy Development and Planning Bureau (PDPB) was able to undertake a total of four (4) R&E studies in 2020, half of which was completed within the year. The Pantawid Pamilyang Pilipino Program-National Program



Management Office (4Ps-NPMO) also had two (2) completed and two (2) ongoing R&E studies in the same year. One of the completed studies managed by 4Ps-NPMO was finished prior to the pandemic.

Most of the R&E studies undertaken by CO-OBS in 2020 were concentrated in the first two (2) Organizational Outcomes (OOs) of the Department, namely OO 1: Well-being of poor families improved, and OO 2: Rights of the vulnerable sectors promoted and protected. Five (5) R&E studies were along OO 2, while three (3) studies were along OO 1. Another study was



related to OO 5: *Delivery of social welfare and development programs by local government units (LGUs), through local social welfare and development offices (LSWDOs), improved.* And another one (1) was on the foundational outcomes of the Department.



The most common sector explored by the R&E studies undertaken by CO-OBS in 2020 was family and community at 40% of the total. Four (4) of 10 studies embarked on by CO-OBS in 2020 covered the said sector. Half of which were already completed in the same year. Organizational development was the next most common sector studied upon by CO-OBS with two (2) completed and one (1) ongoing study. This was followed by the children and

youth sector with one (1) completed and one (1) ongoing study.



Majority of R&E studies conducted CO-OBS 2020 bv in were descriptive in nature. With reference to the DSWD R&E Policy, descriptive research examines situations in order to provide insights on the current situation/place/people/events and establish the current norms, through scientific observation. Various CO-OBS managed six (6) descriptive researches in 2020. Half of which were completed in the same year.

Two (2) retrospective impact evaluation studies and one (1) process evaluation study were also completed. Whereas, one (1) longitudinal study has completed its first round, but the second round is still ongoing.



Four (4) R&E studies undertaken by CO-OBs in 2020 were fully outsourced. Half of which were completed in 2020. Fully outsourced studies refer to those implemented through the engagement with thirdparty researchers and evaluators. On the other hand, there were three (3) completed in-house studies and one (1) completed joint study. The 100% completion of in-house studies in 2020 could imply seamless internal

coordination within CO-OBS, as compared to fully outsourced and joint studies which involve engagement with external partner organizations.

FIELD OFFICE-INITIATED STUDIES

A total of nine (9) R&E studies were undertaken by Field Offices (FOs) in 2020. Majority (6 out of 9) R&E studies initiated by FOs were completed in 2020. Seven (7) out of the nine (8) studies were from FO Caraga, while the other two (2) were from FO II. No reports on FO-initiated researches were received from the other regions.

As in the case of R&E studies managed by the CO-OBS, FOinitiated studies in 2020 were along 001, 002. and organization-focused objectives of the Department. The studies about OO1 explored the big-ticketed programs of the Department: the Pantawid Pamilyang Pilipino Program (4Ps), the Sustainable Livelihood Program (SLP), and the Kapit-Bisig Laban sa Kahirapan -Comprehensive and Integrated Delivery of Social Services (KALAHI-CIDSS). The study on



OO2, on the other hand, looked at child labor and the readiness of clients of the Assistance to Individuals in Crisis Situation (AICS) to digital processing and payment schemes. Lastly, the completed study on OO3: *Immediate relief and early recovery of disaster victims/survivors ensured* investigated the resilience and adaptive capacity of households to disasters.

Family and community, organizational development, as well as children and youth were the sectors explored by FOinitiated studies. Studies on family and community were about 4Ps, SLP, KALAHI-CIDSS, and While AICS. those about organizational development tackled human resource management, one of which was in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. The study on children and youth looked into child labor. No studies about other sectors catered by the Department (e.g., older persons, persons with disabilities, women/gender and development,



etc.) were conducted based on the encoded information by the FOs.

Descriptive research was the most common type of R&E study conducted by FOs in 2020 at 78% of the total. The FOs had five (5) completed and two (2) ongoing descriptive researches. The FOs also managed two (2) case studies, one of which was already completed in 2020. By definition, as described in the R&E Policy, case studies are indepth investigation, which focuses on one or a few instances of a social



phenomenon. FO Caraga studied the case of an SLP Association and selected KALAHI-CIDSS municipalities within the region.

Most of the R&E studies undertaken by FOs in 2020 were in-house and majority of them are still ongoing. Five (5) of nine (9) studies of FOs were in-house. Unlike the in-house studies of CO-OBS. which were all completed in 2020, three (3) of the FO in-house studies are still ongoing. This may imply the need to provide technical assistance and resource augmentation along R&E, and lack of workforce complement for FOs to efficiently implement R&E activities.



EXTERNAL RESEARCH AND EVALUATION STUDIES



Over the past five (5) years, the general trend of the number of external R&E studies facilitated by DSWD is decreasing at an average rate of 10%. The number of external R&E studies facilitated was highest at 282 in 2018. But it continuously declined at an average rate of at least 40% in the past two (2) years. For 2020, 75 external R&E studies were facilitated by the FOs. The CO, on the other hand, facilitated 27

external researches. The observable decrease in 2019 can be attributed to underreporting. But the further decrease in 2020 may be closely linked to the COVID-19 pandemic, during which domestic travel, mass gathering, and face-to-face interaction was restricted. Less external researchers were able to visit the DSWD to request for approval of their research proposal. Nevertheless, external researchers resorted to sending research requests via email as part of the "new normal".

Overall, the CO received the most number of external research requests in 2020 pegged at 27. Of the 27 external research requests at the CO, 20 research proposals (74%) were approved while the other 7 (26%) were either disapproved, still in review, or cancelled. FO NCR comes next with 20 external research requests facilitated, all of which were approved. Meanwhile, FOs II, CAR, and X reported no external research requests facilitated within the year.



A total of 13 external researches were completed in 2020, 31% of which were facilitated by FO CAR. Despite declaring no external research requests facilitated in 2020, FO CAR had four (4) external researches completed within the year. All of which were approved in 2019. FO VI, on the other hand, had one (1) completed research which was approved way back in 2017. Notably, majority of the completed researches in 2020 were approved in 2019, implying that the typical duration of a study is one (1) year.



Around three in four (77%) external research proponents assisted by CO and FOs in 2020 were students from higher education institutions. Out of the 102 external researchers facilitated, about half (52%) of them were from private higher education institutions, while a quarter (25%) were from state universities and colleges. Other research proponents were from corporate organizations/research institutions (13%), international universities (7%), and government agencies (3%).





As in the case of DSWD-initiated R&E studies, the most common sector investigated by external researchers in 2020 was family and community. Nearly one (1) in three (31%) external researches (3) facilitated in 2020 were about the family and community sector. This was followed by children and youth (25%) and organizational development (25%). External R&E studies about older persons as well as multisectoral

ones were the least facilitated, similar to the case in 2019.



Nearly half (48%) of external researches facilitated by CO and FOs in 2020 were related to OO2: *Rights of the poor and vulnerable sectors promoted and protected.* This is followed by OO1: *Well-being of poor families improved* with 35% of external researches related to it. Meanwhile, little to no external researches were facilitated connected with the other OOs of the Department.

External Researches Facilitated by CO and FOs according to DSWD Organizational and Foundational Outcomes



ORGANIZATIONAL OUTCOME 1

Well-being of poor families improved



Among all the topics under DSWD OO 1, the beneficiaries of 4Ps was the most common area of study. Researches in particular would like to explore on the knowledge, attitude, and practices of the program beneficiaries, as well as their compliance to the conditionalities of the program.

Table 1. Areas of study covered in OO1

AREA OF STUDY	NUMBER OF EXTERNAL RESEARCHES
4Ps beneficiaries	13
Implementation of 4Ps	9
Effectiveness and impact of 4Ps	8
Effectiveness of SLP	2
FDS implementation	1
SLP Beneficiaries	3



Under 002, the development and improvement of centers and institutions, as well as the well-being of clients in residential facilities emerged as the most common areas of study. Most of the external studies about the former were done by Architecture students

who proposed new designs or improvements based on their assessment of the current situation of the DSWD centers and institutions. On the latter, Social Work students would like to investigate the quality of life of clients in various residential care facilities.

AREA OF STUDY	NUMBER OF EXTERNAL RESEARCHES
Development and improvement of centers	6
and institutions	
Well-being of clients in residential care	6
facilities	
CICL	5
PWDs	5
Child abuse/exploitation	4
AICS	3
Well-being of center staff	3
Gender-based violence	2
Supplementary Feeding Program	2
Human trafficking	2
Reproductive Health	1
Community-based services	1
Adoption	1
Others	8

Table 2 Areas of study covered in OO2



Immediate relief and early recovery of disaster victims/survivors ensured

Only a few external researches were facilitated under OO 3 in 2020. Resilience and adaptive capacity of households to disasters remains to be the most studied topic under this outcome.

Table 3. Areas of study covered in OO3

AREA OF STUDY	NUMBER OF EXTERNAL RESEARCHES
Resilience and adaptive capacity of	3
households to disasters	
Comprehensive Emergency Program for	1
Children	
Resource Management	1

Only three (3) external studies were facilitated in 2020 under OO5. All of which were about the social service workforce at the local government units.



ORGANIZATIONAL OUTCOME 5

Delivery of social welfare and development (SWD) programs by local government units (LGUs), through local social welfare and development offices (LSWDOs), improved

Table 4. Areas of study covered in OO5

AREA OF STUDY	NUMBER OF EXTERNAL RESEARCHES		
Social Service Workforce	3		

FOUNDATIONAL OUTCOMES

Stress coping mechanisms, well-being, and satisfaction of employees were the most studied topics under the DSWD Foundational Outcomes.

Table 5. Areas of study covered in the Foundational Outcomes

AREA OF STUDY	NUMBER OF EXTERNAL RESEARCHES
Human resource management and	6
development	
Enterprise Risk Management	1
Knowledge Management	1
Finance Management	1
Information Technology	1
Others	1

RESEARCH DISSEMINATION

One existing mechanism for the dissemination and utilization of completed R & E studies in the Department is through the DSWD-initiated social welfare and development (SWD) fora and research colloquia. With reference to MC no. 10 s. 2019, research conferences/learning fora refer to the venue for the presentation of completed researches and serve as platform for awareness and promotion of the studies.

In March 2020, the PDPB held a Research Forum aimed to disseminate the various studies on SWD and social protection (SP), and encourage stakeholders implementing SWD and SP programs to utilize the results in policy and program development.

The following DSWD-initiated research studies were presented during the forum:

Table 6. DSWD-Initiated research studies presented during the 2020 Research Forum					
PROPONENT RESEARCH TITLE OFFICE		PARTNER INSTITUTION			
Field Office II	Perceptions, Resilience and Adaptive Capacity of Households to Climate Extremes and Disasters in the Sixth District of Isabela	Isabela State University			
Field Office II Child Labor in the Major Industries in Cagayan Valley Region: An Assessment		Isabela State University			
4Ps-NPMO	Gender Mapping Research under the Women Economic Empowerment and Leadership (WEEL) Project to Enhance Gender Outcomes of the MCCT-IP and RCCT in GIDAs	UNICEF and UP Los Baños			

Table 6. DSWD-initiated research studies presented during the 2020 Research Forum

Also part of the program was a presentation on the key provisions of the DSWD Research and Evaluation Agenda 2019-2022 (AO No. 22, s. 2019), to further disseminate the R&E priorities of the Department to the participants.

The Research Forum was attended by a mix of representatives from relevant DSWD Offices, national government agencies, and the academe.

ISSUES/CONCERNS AND RECOMMENDED ACTIONS

ISSUES AND CONCERN	RECOMMENDED ACTION			
Low turnout of researches conducted and challenges in research implementation due to the pandemic	Explore on alternative modes of data collection if primary data collection is necessary. Use of available secondary datasets may also be looked into to attain research objectives without the need to collect primary data.			
The centralized database of administrative and secondary data of DSWD and compendium of statistics are not easily accessible to all stakeholders	Strengthen the dissemination of DSWD administrative and secondary data. PDPB should maximize its Content Management Team to develop an interactive database that is easily accessible in the website.			
Non-compliance of external researchers on the submission of full reports of completed researches and incomplete monitoring of researches	Strengthen mechanisms for monitoring external researchers through an electronic research ticketing system with the assistance of ICTMS			
Conduct of internal and external researches without undergoing review as required by the R&E Policy and Research Protocol	Continue advocating and popularizing the research-related policies of the Department (i.e., MC 9 and 10, s.2019) as mentioned in the Memorandum of Reiteration issued by the Undersecretary for Policy and Plans			
Varied context in the facilitation of researches across the Central and Field Offices	Review and harmonize the processes under the Research Protocol across the Central and Field Offices in consideration of pertinent laws (i.e., Data Privacy Act, Ease of Doing Business Law, Anti-Red Tape Act, etc.)			
Absence of Research Ethics Committee to review the research ethics of proposals involving human subjects	Institutionalize research ethics in the Department through the establishment of a Research Ethics Committee and operationalization of its Terms of Reference			

NEXT STEPS FOR THE PDPB

- 1. Continue to implement the Online R&E Portal for both the CO and FOs to facilitate proper reporting and consolidation of undertaken and facilitated R&E studies
- 2. Strengthen the implementation and monitoring of the Client Satisfaction Measurement Survey to serve as the basis for evaluating the feedback of the researchers on the assistance to their research requests
- 3. Request for technical assistance from ICTMS towards the development of an electronic research ticketing system aimed to strengthen the monitoring of external researchers
- 4. Continue harmonizing the standard operating procedures of the research protocol across the Central and Field Offices towards ISO certification
- Follow through on research ethics initiatives towards the establishment of a Research Ethics Committee, capacity building of its members, and operationalization of its Terms of Reference
- Ensure the strict and continuous implementation of MC Nos. 9 (DSWD Research and Evaluation Policy) and 10 (Amendment to the Protocol for the Conduct of Research Studies in DSWD Offices, Centers and Institutions), series of 2019
- 7. Strengthen linkages and networking with research institutions, the academe and other stakeholders to promote awareness on the DSWD R&E Policy and amended DSWD Protocol on the conduct of research in the Department. This can be done through the cascading and popularization of the DSWD R&E Agenda and R&E Plan.
- 8. Continuously monitor the approved DSWD Research and Evaluation Agenda 2019-2022 (AO no. 22 s. 2019). This is to steer the Department and its partners towards results-based management and to ensure that its programs and projects remain relevant and responsive to the needs of the poor, vulnerable, and marginalized.

ANNEX A. LIST OF RESEARCH AND EVALUATION STUDIES UNDERTAKEN BY THE CENTRAL OFFICE

NO.	PROPONENT OBS	TITLE OF THE STUDY	STATUS	RESEARCH AREA	SECTOR	RESEARCH/ EVALUATION TYPE	APPROACH
1	4Ps-NPMO	Reassessing the Impact of the Pantawid Pamilyang Pilipino Program: Results of the Third Wave Impact Evaluation	Completed	001	Family and Community	Impact Evaluation	Fully Outsourced
2	4Ps-NPMO	Gender Mapping Research under the Women Economic Empowerment and Leadership (WEEL) Project to Enhance Gender Outcomes of the DSWD Modified Conditional Cash Transfer for Indigenous People (MCCP-IP) and Regular Conditional Cash Transfer (RCCT) Programs in Geographically Isolated and Disadvantaged Areas (GIDA)	Completed	002	Women/GAD	Descriptive Research	Fully Outsourced
3	4Ps-NPMO	Spot Check 2020	Ongoing	001	Family and Community	Descriptive Research	In-house
4	4Ps-NPMO	2019 Nationwide Survey on the Nature and Extent of Drug Abuse in the Philippines (2019 Nationwide Lifestyle Survey on Health, Risk-Behavior, and Well- being among Filipinos)	Ongoing	002	Family and Community	Descriptive Research	Joint
5	PDPB	Process Evaluation of the Supplementary Feeding Program	Completed	002	Children and Youth	Process Evaluation	In-house

NO.	PROPONENT OBS	TITLE OF THE STUDY	STATUS	RESEARCH AREA	SECTOR	RESEARCH/ EVALUATION TYPE	APPROACH
6	PDPB	Rapid Assessment of Devolved Emergency Programs and Services	Completed	OO5	Organizational	Descriptive Research	In-house
7	PDPB	Impacts of COVID-19 to Food Security and Essential Needs of the Most Affected Residents of the Areas under Community Quarantine using WFP Remote Monitoring and Assessment Tools	Ongoing	002	Family and Community	Longitudinal Study	Joint
8	PDPB	Cost of Raising Children with Disabilities	Ongoing	002	Children and Youth	Descriptive Research	Fully- outsourced
9	SLP-NPMO	Impacts of the Sustainable Livelihood Program's Microenterprise Development Assistance with Seed Capital Fund on poor households in the Philippines	Completed	001	Family and Community	Impact Evaluation	Fully Outsourced
10	SMS	Knowledge, Attitude, and Practices Study	Completed	Foundational	Family and Community	Descriptive Research	In-house

ANNEX B. LIST OF RESEARCH AND EVALUATION STUDIES UNDERTAKEN BY THE FIELD OFFICES

NO.	PROPONENT FO	TITLE OF THE STUDY	STATUS	RESEARCH AREA	SECTOR	RESEARCH/ EVALUATION TYPE	APPROACH
1	FOII	Perceptions, Resilience and Adaptive Capacity of Households to Climate Extremes and Disasters in the Sixth District of Isabela	Completed	003	Family and Community	Descriptive Research	Joint
2	FOII	Child Labor in the Major Industries in Cagayan Valley Region: An Assessment	Completed	002	Children and Youth	Descriptive Research	Joint
3	FO Caraga	Understanding Reasons to Stay and Prospective Voluntary Employee Turnover: A Report on the Prevalence of Motivations and Perceived Implications in the Department of Social Welfare and Development (DSWD) Field Office (FO) Caraga	Completed	Foundational	Organizational	Descriptive Research	In-house
4	FO Caraga	Survey Research on the DSWD Health and Safety Protocol in light of COVID-19 Pandemic in FO Caraga	Completed	Foundational	Organizational	Descriptive Research	In-house
5	FO Caraga	Fortune Farmers Association and La Fortuna Vendors SLP Association Inc.: Organizational Assessment	Completed	001	Organizational	Case Study	Fully outsourced
6	FO Caraga	Comparative Study on KC- NCDDP's Procurement Process and RA 9184 in Selected	Completed	001	Organizational	Descriptive Research	Fully outsourced

NO.	PROPONENT FO	TITLE OF THE STUDY	STATUS	RESEARCH AREA	SECTOR	RESEARCH/ EVALUATION TYPE	APPROACH
		Barangays of the Municipality of Rosario, Agusan del Sur					
7	FO Caraga	Effects of the Pantawid Pamilyang Pilipino Program Family Development Session (4Ps-FDS) Implementation to the Manobo Indigenous Cultural Communities (ICCs)/ Indigenous Peoples (IPs) in the Caraga Region	Ongoing	001	Family and Community	Descriptive Research	In-house
8	FO Caraga	Enabling Components for Pandemic Management: The Case of Selected KC-NCDDP Municipalities in Caraga Region, Philippines	Ongoing	001	Family and Community	Case Study	In-house
9	FO Caraga	Perceived Feasibility and Readiness of AICS Clients for Prospective Transition to Digital Processing and Payment Schemes at DSWD FO Caraga, Butuan City	Ongoing	002	Family and Community	Descriptive Research	In-house

ANNEX C. LIST OF EXTERNAL RESEARCH AND EVALUATION STUDIES FACILITATED BY THE DSWD

NO.	OFFICE	TITLE OF RESEARCH STUDY	STATUS	RESEARCH AREA	SECTOR	INSTITUTION
1	Central Office	Process Evaluation of the Implementation of the Responsible Parenthood and Reproductive Health Law of 2012	Ongoing	002	Family and Community	Philippine Institute for Development Studies
2	Central Office	Psychological disorders caused by webcam child sex exploitation	Disapproved	002	Family and Community	
3	Central Office	Implementation of Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) in the Philippines Public Sector Governance towards the establishment of ERM framework	Ongoing	Foundational	Organizational	Polytechnic University of the Philippines – Open University System
4	Central Office	"Assessment of the Relationship between KM Processes and the Competitive Advantage of National Government Agencies and the Moderating Effect of the Organizational Culture"	Completed	Foundational	Organizational	University of the Philippines-Open University
5	Central Office	Human trafficking specifically looking at how agencies assess and intervene	Disapproved	002	Family and Community	University of Michigan
6	Central Office	Thesis on one of the communities in Tondo	Disapproved	002	Family and Community	Enderun Colleges
7	Central Office	Children's Situation in Emergencies	Ongoing	003	Children and Youth	Save the Children Philippines
8	Central Office	Monitoring Digital G2P payment delivery to improve customer experience and financial inclusion outcomes in the Philippines	Ongoing	002	Organizational	Innovations for Poverty Action (IPA)
9	Central Office	Program assessment on DSWD Domestic Adoption	Ongoing	002	Organizational	Philippine Women's University
10	Central Office	In-depth research and presentation about the Department of Social Welfare and Development	Ongoing	Foundational	Organizational	University of Santo Tomas

NO.	OFFICE	TITLE OF RESEARCH STUDY	STATUS	RESEARCH AREA	SECTOR	INSTITUTION
11	Central Office	"Industrial relations in the public sector: Assessing the role of the industrial relations actors in curtailing labor contractualization in a national government agency".	Ongoing	Foundational	Organizational	University of the Philippines-Diliman
12	Central Office	Request for an interview regarding the implementation of the Social Amelioration Program 1st Batch	Completed	002	Family and Community	University of the Philippines-Diliman
13	Central Office	Fact-checking class to collect data about the financial assistance received by individuals in the formal sector, OFWs abroad and repatriated OFWs as of July 27, 2020. In addition, I would like to inquire more about the implementation of the COVID-19 Adjustment Measures Program and other initiatives such as the TUPAD project and initiatives for the senior citizens.	In review	002	Family and Community	University of the Philippines-Diliman
14	Central Office	Online Child Sexual Exploitation and Abuse, in Africa and Southeast Asia	In review	002	Women/GAD	ECPAT Philippines
15	Central Office	Conduct a survey to assess the impact of COVID-19 on DSWD staff and their families.	In review	Foundational	Organizational	Investing in Women
16	Central Office	Conduct of a Full-blown Impact Assessment of the Agriculture and Fisheries Modernization Act (AFMA) Phase 2	In review	002	Family and Community	Department of Agriculture - Philippines Council for Agriculture
17	Central Office	A Study on Investment and Costing the Social Service Workforce to Prevent and Respond to Violence Against Children	Ongoing	OO5	Children and Youth	Social Watch Philippines
18	Central Office	Pantawid Pamilya conditional cash transfer and intimate partner violence in Filipino households	Ongoing	001	Women/GAD	University of Antwerp Belgium

NO.	OFFICE	TITLE OF RESEARCH STUDY	STATUS	RESEARCH AREA	SECTOR	INSTITUTION
19	Central Office	Assessment of the "No Fraud Policy" in the Pantawid Pamilyang Pilipino Program – Maguindanao	Ongoing	001	Organizational	Cotabato City State Polytechnic College
20	Central Office	Philippine Nutrition Program and Agencies	Ongoing	001	Children and Youth	University of Santo Tomas
21	Central Office	Advancing Equality Through Poverty Alleviation Strategies in Developing Countries: A Case Study of the Philippines' Pantawid Pamilyang Pilipino Program	Ongoing	001	Organizational	Yale-National University of Singapore College
22	Central Office	Examining the Link Between Social Policy and Vulnerability to Extreme Weather Shocks	Ongoing	003	Family and Community	University of Melbourne, Australia
23	Central Office	A Philippine Middle-Class Development Thought	Ongoing	002	Family and Community	University of the Philippines-Diliman
24	Central Office	Comprehensive Study on COVID-19: A Report on the Implementation of Various Government Programs amid the COVID-19 Pandemic	Ongoing	001	Organizational	Philippine Institute for Development Studies
25	Central Office	Comparative Study of the Effectiveness of Conditional Cash Transfer Programs in the Philippines and Brazil	Ongoing	001	Organizational	Ateneo School of Government
26	Central Office	The Impact of the Philippines' Pantawid Pamilyang Pilipino Program on Filipino Families	Ongoing	OO1	Organizational	Georgetown University, United States
27	Central Office	Multidimensional Evaluation of the Philippines' Conditional Cash Transfer Programme	Ongoing	001	Organizational	Erasmus Universiteit Rotterdam, Netherlands
28	Field Office I	Lived Experiences of Houseparents in Region 1 Rehabilitation Centers	Ongoing	002	Family and Community	Don Mariano Marcos Memorial State University
29	Field Office I	A Post Elementary Performance of 4Ps Recipients in a Public School: Documentary Analysis	Ongoing	001	Children and Youth	University of Northern Philippines

NO.	OFFICE	TITLE OF RESEARCH STUDY	STATUS	RESEARCH AREA	SECTOR	INSTITUTION
30	Field Office I	Impact of the Pantawid Pamilyang Pilipino Program (4Ps) as a Strategy in the Poverty Reduction Program in the Province of Pangasinan: Basis for Policy Recommendations	Ongoing	001	Children and Youth	Don Mariano Marcos Memorial State University
31	Field Office I	Impact Assessment of the Sustainable Livelihood Program of the Department of Social Welfare and Development in Pangasinan"	Ongoing	OO1	Family and Community	Lyceum Northwestern University
32	Field Office I	Beyond Compliance: The Lived Experiences of Pantawid Pamilyang Pilipino Program Parent Leaders	Ongoing	001	Family and Community	Saint Louis College
33	Field Office I	Process Improvement: A Key To Customer Satisfaction in the DSWD Field Office 1	Ongoing	Foundational	Organizational	Saint Louis College
34	Field Office I	Management Practices of Beneficiaries of a Government Sustainable Livelihood Program Engaged in Retail Industry	Ongoing	001	Family and Community	Saint Louis College
35	Field Office I	Assessment on the Implementation of SFP to its beneficiaries in Child Development Centers at the Municipality of Bugallon, Pangasinan (CY 2017-2018; CY 2018- 2019)	Ongoing	002	Children and Youth	Lycuem Northwestern University
36	Field Office III	"An Évaluation of Pantawid Pamilya Pilipino Program Among beneficiaries in the City of San Jose Del Monte, Bulacan"	Ongoing	001	Family and Community	University of the Philippines-Diliman
37	Field Office III	Healing Community for Sexual Exploited Children	Ongoing	002	Children and Youth	University of Santo Tomas
38	Field Office III	Examining the Impact of the Philippines Conditional Cash Transfer Program on Public Safety and Security	Ongoing	001	Family and Community	National Police College
39	Field Office III	4Ps Beneficiaries Dependency on Television and its Effects to their	Ongoing	001	Family and Community	Pampanga State Agricultural College

NO.	OFFICE	TITLE OF RESEARCH STUDY	STATUS	RESEARCH AREA	SECTOR	INSTITUTION
		Knowledge, Attitude and Practices on Inflation"				
40	Field Office III	The Bio-psychosocial Preparation of Multi- Professional Board Passers	Ongoing	Foundational	Multisectoral	La Consolacion University Philippines
41	Field Office III	An Evidenced-Based Study in the Role of Menstrual Cycle and Estradiol among Filipino Women with PTSD	Ongoing	002	Women/GAD	University of Santo Tomas
42	NCR	The Benefit of Sports to the Adaptive Behavior of Children with Intellectual Disability	Ongoing	002	Persons with Disability	De La Salle University - Dasmariñas
43	NCR	The Effectiveness of Pantawid Pamilyang Pilipino Program to Academic Performance of Beneficiaries in Brgy. 129 Zone 11, Tondo,Manila	Ongoing	001	Children and Youth	Unibersidad De Manila
44	NCR	A Proposed Residential Care Facility for the Elderly	Ongoing	002	Senior Citizen	Mapua University
45	NCR	Oral Health Status of Cerebral Palsy Patient in Elsie Gaches Village, Muntinlupa City	Ongoing	002	Children and Youth	Centro Escolar University
46	NCR	Institutional Programs and Wellbeing of Children in Crisis in Marillac Hills	Ongoing	002	Children and Youth	Arellano University
47	NCR	The Effectiveness of Pantawid Pamilyang Pilipino Program to Academic Performance of Beneficiaries in Brgy 179 Zone 11 Tondo Manila	Ongoing	001	Children and Youth	Mehan Garden Lawton Manila
48	NCR	Gender-Based Violence in the Philippines	Ongoing	002	Women/GAD	Norwegian University of Life Sciences
49	NCR	A Spatial Analysis on the Architectural Design and Planning Issues Prevalent in Residential Care Facilities for the Elderly	Ongoing	002	Persons with Disability	Muralla Street Intramuros Manila
50	NCR	Work-Related Stress and Well-Being of Selected Filipino Registered Nurses Working in Nursing Homes in Metro Manila	Ongoing	002	Senior Citizen	St. Josephs College

NO.	OFFICE	TITLE OF RESEARCH STUDY	STATUS	RESEARCH AREA	SECTOR	INSTITUTION
51	NCR	Institutional Programs and Well- being of Clients in Crisis at Marillac Hills	Ongoing	002	Organizational	Arellano University
52	NCR	The Perceived Effectiveness of Pantawid Pamilyang Pilipino Program in the Socio Economic Upliftment of the Beneficiaries	Ongoing	001	Family and Community	Rizal Technological University
53	NCR	Psychosocial and Environmental Factors that Impact Return to Work of Filipino Early Adults with Physical Disability: A Descriptive Study	Ongoing	002	Persons with Disability	University of Santo Tomas
54	NCR	A Healthy Environment: An Application of Nightingale's Environmental Theory in the Interior Design of Haven for Children	Ongoing	002	Children and Youth	Polytechnic University of the Philippines
55	NCR	A Case Study of Government - Delivered Community Based Geriatric Mental Health Program in the Philippines	Ongoing	002	Senior Citizen	University of the Philippines-Manila
56	NCR	Effectiveness of Learning Spaces for intellectual and skills development of Deaf, Mute and Blind Post Secondary Students	Ongoing	002	Persons with Disability	Mapua University
57	NCR	Quality of Life, Compassion Satisfaction and Second Hand Trauma Among Mental Health Professionals as Basis for the Development of Self-Care Program	Ongoing	002	Children and Youth	Lyceum of the Philippines University
58	NCR	A Study on the Effectiveness of Learning Spaces for Intellectual Skills Development for Deaf, Mute and Blind Post-Secondary students	Ongoing	002	Persons with Disability	Mapua University
59	NCR	Impact Assessment of Supplementary Feeding Program at Child Development Centers in Taguig City Towards Program Enhancement	Ongoing	002	Children and Youth	Taguig City University
60	NCR	Exploration on the Efficiency of the Sufficiency and Conditionalities of Pantawid Pamilyang Pilipino Program	Ongoing	001	Family and Community	St. Mary's College - Quezon City and

NO.	OFFICE	TITLE OF RESEARCH STUDY	STATUS	RESEARCH AREA	SECTOR	INSTITUTION
		(4Ps) in Selected Areas in Metro Manila: A Mixed Method Study				Kanto Gakuin University - Japan
61	NCR	Demograpics and Job Satisfaction as Correlates to Burnout Syndrome among Mental Health Professionals: Basis for Wellness Program	Ongoing	002	Organizational	University of the East Caloocan Campus
62	Field Office IV-A (CALABARZON)	Court Experiences of Corroborative Witnesses: Basis for a Debriefing Program	Ongoing	002	Organizational	De La Salle University - Dasmariñas
63	Field Office IV-A (CALABARZON)	Quality of Life of Compliant and Non- compliant Mothers on a Conditional Cash Transfer Program in Magdalena, Laguna	Ongoing	001	Family and Community	University of the Philippines-Open University
64	Field Office IV-A (CALABARZON)	Aspirations and Future-oriented Decisions of the 4Ps Beneficiaries in Bay, Laguna	Ongoing	OO1	Family and Community	Distance Open and Transnational University - Central Luzon State University
65	Field Office IV-A (CALABARZON)	Development of a Marketing Plan for Pandan-based handicrafts in Luisiana, Laguna	Ongoing	001	Organizational	University of the Philippines-Open University
66	Field Office IV-A (CALABARZON)	WORK ENVIRONMENT ANALYSIS OF THE PROGRAM IMPLEMENTERS OF PANTAWID PAMILYA PILIPINO PROGRAM OF THE DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL WELFARE AND DEVELOPMENT- SAN JUAN, BATANGAS	Ongoing	001	Family and Community	University of the Philippines-Open University
67	Field Office IV-A (CALABARZON)	Child –Centered Approach to Enhance Disaster Risk Reduction Knowledge Through Community Health Promotion and Education Intervention Program	Ongoing	003	Children and Youth	De La Salle Medical and Health Sciences Institute Governor, D. Mangubat Avenue, City of Dasmariñas, Cavite 4114

NO.	OFFICE	TITLE OF RESEARCH STUDY	STATUS	RESEARCH AREA	SECTOR	INSTITUTION
68	Field Office IV-A (CALABARZON)	PINAY: A Proposed Women's Shelter and Support Center	Completed	002	Women/GAD	Adamson University
69	Field Office IV-A (CALABARZON)	PANTAWID PAMILYA PILIPINO PROGRAM (4P's) IN SELECTED BARANGAYS IN ANTIPOLO CITY TOWARDS A REVITALIZE COMMUNITY AFFAIRS	Ongoing	001	Family and Community	University of Caloocan City
70	Field Office IV-A (CALABARZON)	Effectiveness of Family Development Session (FDS) of Department of Social Welfare and Development – City of Antipolo	Completed	001	Family and Community	University of Rizal System
71	Field Office IV-B (MIMAROPA)	ASSESSMENT OF PANTAWID PAMILYANG PILIPINOPROGRAM CASH TRANSFER ASSISTANCE OF DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL WELFARE AND DEVELOPMENT TO SELECTED FAMILY PARTNER BENEFICIARIES: BASIS TO CRAFT A POLICY INTERVENTION	Ongoing	001	Family and Community	Marinduque State University
72	Field Office V	SCHOOL INVOLVEMENT OF PARENTS AND ACADEMIC PERFORMANCE OF PANTAWID PAMILYANG PILIPINO PROGRAM (4Ps) BENEFICIARIES IN PARACALE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	Ongoing	001	Children and Youth	Mabini College Graduate School
73	Field Office V	IMPLEMENTATION AND EDUCATIONAL CHALLENGES OF THE EXPANDED STUDENTS' GRANTS-IN-AID PROGRAM FOR POVERTY ALLEVIATION (ESGP-PA)	Ongoing	002	Children and Youth	Daniel B. Peña Memorial College Foundation, Inc.

NO.	OFFICE	TITLE OF RESEARCH STUDY	STATUS	RESEARCH AREA	SECTOR	INSTITUTION
74	Field Office V	COUNSELING SERVICES AND SOCIAL SUPPORT TO CONDITIONAL CASH TRANSFER PROGRAM BENEFICIARIES	Ongoing	001	Family and Community	Daniel B. Peña Memorial College Foundation, Inc.
75	Field Office V	HALIYA: PROVINCIAL REHABILITATION CENTER FOR WOMEN AND GIRLS.	Ongoing	002	Women/GAD	University of Nueva Caceres
76	Field Office V	GENDER AND DISABILITY ASSESSMENT	Ongoing	002	Multisectoral	Education Development Center
77	Field Office VI	Level of Stress Among the Personnel of the Department of Social Welfare and Development in the Province of Iloilo: Basis for Employee Wellness Program	Ongoing	Foundational	Organizational	West Visayas State University
78	Field Office VI	Information System Strategic Plan (ISSP)	Ongoing	Foundational	Organizational	
79	Field Office VI	Understanding the Help-seeking Stories of Children at risk of Iloilo City	In review	002	Children and Youth	University of Saint La Salle Bacolod
80	Field Office VI	Pantawid Pamilya Service Deliverer Disaster Preparedness in the Province of Capiz	Ongoing	003	Family and Community	University of San Agustin
81	Field Office VI	The Enhanced Comprehensive Local Integration Program (E-Clip): Its Rolse in the Government's Whole of Nation Counter-Intersurgency Campaign"	Ongoing	002	Family and Community	Command and General Staff College
82	Field Office VI	Health condition of small-scale fishing households	Ongoing	002	Family and Community	University of the Philippines Visayas
83	Field Office VI	Life Experiences of the Juvenile Delinquent Youth of the Regional Rehabilitation Center of Youth in Guimaras	Ongoing	002	Children and Youth	Colegio del Sagrado Corazon de Jesus
84	Field Office VII	The Lived Experiences of Physically and Sexually Abused Female Minors: Case Study	Ongoing	002	Women/GAD	University of Southern Philippines Foundation, Inc.
85	Field Office VII	Improving the Inventory Management Information System of DSWD – VDRC	Ongoing	003	Organizational	University of San Carlos - Talamban Campus

NO.	OFFICE	TITLE OF RESEARCH STUDY	STATUS	RESEARCH AREA	SECTOR	INSTITUTION
86	Field Office VII	Maslow's Theory: A Proposed Interior Design for DSWD- Home for Girls in Labangon	Ongoing	002	Women/GAD	University of San Carlos - Talamban Campus
87	Field Office VIII	Extent of Implementation of the Beneficiary Data Management System (BDMS) of the Pntawid Pamilyang Pilipino Program in mAssin City, Southern Leyte: Basis for an Enhanced Program	Cancelled application	001	Family and Community	College of Maasin
88	Field Office VIII	A Comparative Study on the Compliance in Maternal and Child Health Care Services Among 4Ps and Non 4Ps Mothers in Tanauan, Leyte	Cancelled application	001	Women/GAD	University of the Philippines - Manila
89	Field Office VIII	Mainstream Formal Education on the Rehabilitation Process of Children in Conflict with the Law	In review	002	Children and Youth	Eastern Visayas State University Tacloban City, Leyte
90	Field Office VIII	New Life, New Promise: Experiences of Former Children in Conflict with the Law	In review	002	Children and Youth	University of Cebu Cebu City, Cebu
91	Field Office IX	Baseline Assessment for IOM Project Impact-BARMM	Ongoing	002	Family and Community	Integrated Resource Development for Tri- People
92	Field Office XI	"A Proposed DavNor Juvenile Detention and Learning Center: A Study on Improving Holistic Health of Juvenile Delinquent through the Application of Trauma-informed Design and Holistic Approach"	Ongoing	002	Children and Youth	Ateneo de Davao University
93	Field Office XII	Effectiveness of Sustainable Livelihood Program's Monitoring and Evaluation in DSWD	Disapproved	OO1	Organizational	Notre Dame of Marbel University
94	Field Office XII	Pantawid Pamilyang Pilipino Program and Students' Performance in English of Koronadal City Division	Disapproved	001	Children and Youth	Department of Education - Koronadal City Division

NO.	OFFICE	TITLE OF RESEARCH STUDY	STATUS	RESEARCH AREA	SECTOR	INSTITUTION
95	Field Office XII	AN EVALUATION OF THE REHABILITATION PROGRAM OF HOME FOR GIRLS CENTERS ON VICTIMS OF CHILD ABUSE. BASIS FOR IMPLEMENTATION.	Ongoing	002	Children and Youth	Ramon Magsaysay Memorial Colleges, Inc.
96	Field Office XII	AN EVALUATION OF MATIBA RAMUS AND BAGONG SILANG BARANGAY STA. CRUZ, KORONADAL CITY	Ongoing	001	Family and Community	Ramon Magsaysay Memorial Colleges, Inc.
97	Field Office XII	WORK RELATED DISTRESSES ENCOUNTERED BY SOCIAL WORKERS AND THEIR COPING MECHANISM	Ongoing	Foundational	Organizational	Ramon Magsaysay Memorial Colleges, Inc.
98	CARAGA	Stories of Houseparents' in Managing Children in Conflict with the Law in Caraga Region	Ongoing	002	Organizational	Caraga State University
99	CARAGA	An assessment on the impact of Gulayan sa Barangay to the socio-economic well- being of Pantawid Pamilya Partner- Beneficiaries in Brgy. Pinamanculan, Butuan City	Ongoing	001	Family and Community	Caraga State University
100	CARAGA	Effects of Cash Grants: A Comparative Study on the Academic Performance of the Pantawid and the Non-Pantawid Students of Ampayon National High School in Ampayon, Butuan City	Ongoing	001	Children and Youth	Caraga State University
101	CARAGA	Satisfaction and Employee Perofrmance in Social Welfare Agency	In review	Foundational	Organizational	The University of Mindanao
102	CARAGA	Project Post-Implementation and Client Satisfaction of Crisis Intervention Section in Butuan City	In review	002	Family and Community	The University of Mindanao